MARCH 4, 2025

PAGE ONE

MINUTES OF REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
VERSAILLES MUNICIPAL BUILDING/5:30 P.M.

ROLL CALL: MAYOR LAURA DAKE PRESIDED OVER THE MEETING. ALSO
PRESENT WERE COUNCIL MEMBERS CHANTEL BINGHAM, MARY
BRADLEY, GARY JONES, LISA JOHNSON, ANN MILLER, AND FRED
SIEGELMAN. CITY ATTORNEY BILL MOORE WAS ALSO PRESENT.

DEPT. HEADS: BART MILLER, T.A. RANKIN, ELIZABETH REYNOLDS, AND ROB
YOUNG WERE PRESENT REPRESENTING THEIR RESPECTIVE
DEPARTMENTS.

MOTION BY SIEGELMAN, SECONDED BY JOHNSON TO APPROVE AND ADOPT THE
MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 18, 2025 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING.

The vote was as follows: Bingham, Johnson, Jones, Miller and Siegelman voting aye. Council
member Bradley abstained.

Public Comment
No public comment was received.

Rich Pictor, Executive Director of Parks and Recreation, provided an update on the Big Spring Park
project. He shared photos of the progress to date, including the plaza which replicates an 1800s map of
the area and the two new pavilions and restrooms. Mr. Pictor stated that there are security cameras
being installed throughout which will be accessible by the Versailles Police Department and he noted
that the the restrooms will lock at set times each night. He also stated that the lighting will be set to
turn off at night and can be controlled by both Parks and Recreation and the Versailles Police
Department. Mr. Pictor stated that dead trees, which were in danger of falling, had been removed. He
said that they are expecting to open in late May, as soon as the grass is growing sufficiently on the
great lawn.

Mr. Pictor also shared information about Parks and Recreation’s upcoming Summer Program Guide
which includes the Summer Family Splash Pass for $175.00 and the Summer Play 120 Series which is
a free playtime for kids ages 7-12 on Tuesdays from 10:00am — 12:00pm including kickball, tennis, flag
football, and basketball.

Council member Miller thanked Mr. Pictor for the continued updates throughout the process.
Council member Johnson thanked him for offering free programming this summer.

Council member Siegelman asked about improvements to the steps going from Park Street up to
Court Street and it was determined that those concrete steps are owned by the City of Versailles. Mr.
Pictor stated that the Big Spring Park renovations include new concrete up to the steps.

Council member Lisa Johnson, in her role as Executive Director of Mentors & Meals, addressed the
council to celebrate the volunteer efforts of Council member Gary Jones. McKenna Halderman,
Program Director, was also present. They noted that Mr. Jones works to provide approximately 9,360
meals per year in his work with the Monday night community meals and he has volunteered a total of
4,303 hours with Mentors & Meals since it was created in 2011. They presented Mr. Jones with a gift
of appreciation for his continued support.

Public Works Director Bart Miller presented the following bids for the 2025 Rose Crest Cemetery
mowing:

Aphix $449.00/mow
Versailles Lawncare $460.00/mow
Parks Landscape Group $480.00/mow
D&M Mowing $530.00/mow

T&M Lawn Care $800.00/mow



MARCH 4, 2025

PAGE TWO

MINUTES OF REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
VERSAILLES MUNICIPAL BUILDING/5:30 P.M.

Mr. Miller stated that while Aphix was the low bid, City ordinance 33.03 (Preference for Local
Businesses) states that if the low bidder is not a local business, then the local business is awarded the
bid if their bid is less than 5% more than the actual low bid. Therefore, Mr. Miller recommended the
local low bid as presented by Versailles Lawncare.

MOTION BY BRADLEY, SECONDED BY BINGHAM TO APPROVE THE BID AS PRESENTED
BY VERSAILLES LAWNCARE IN THE AMOUNT OF $460.00 PER MOW FOR THE 2025
MOWING OF ROSE CREST CEMETERY.

The vote was as follows: Bingham, Bradley, Johnson, Jones, Miller and Siegelman voting aye.

Mayor Dake stated that the City had solicited RFP’s for the Safe Streets For All project. They had
then worked with Prime AE to prepare the fee proposal as presented, in the amount of $93,500. She
noted that this project is grant funded and the total award is $130,000.

MOTION BY MILLER, SECONDED BY JOHNSON TO ACCEPT THE FEE PROPOSAL AS
PRESENTED BY PRIME AE IN THE AMOUNT OF $93,500 FOR THE SAFE STREETS FOR ALL
PROJECT.

The vote was as follows: Bingham, Bradley, Johnson, Jones, Miller and Siegelman voting aye.

Mr. Miller presented a revised Change Order #1 for the Water Treatment Plant Generator. He noted
that the original was approved at the February 4™ council meeting and asked that it be rescinded and
the revised version, dated February 27%, be approved.

MOTION BY BINGHAM, SECONDED BY SIEGELMAN TO RESCIND CHANGE ORDER #1 FOR
THE WATER TREATMENT PLANT GENERATOR PROJECT.

The vote was as follows: Bingham, Bradley, Johnson, Jones, Miller and Siegelman voting aye.

MOTION BY JOHNSON, SECONDED BY BINGHAM TO APPROVE REVISED CHANGE
ORDER #1, DATED FEBRUARY 27, 2025, FOR THE WATER TREATMENT PLANT
GENERATOR PROJECT IN THE CREDIT AMOUNT OF $1,262,283.00/

The vote was as follows: Bingham, Bradley, Johnson, Jones, Miller and Siegelman voting aye.

Mayor Dake presented an invoice from Ruggles Sign for the signage at the Versailles Market and
Entertainment District. She stated that the total cost for the signage was $60,000 and Ruggles has
invoiced the City for 30%o of that. The remainder is their in-kind donation. Mayor Dake noted that
Ruggles is a Legacy Partner as well. She recommended the invoice be paid from the Legacy partner
funds.

MOTION BY SIEGELMAN, SECONDED BY JOHNSON TO APPROVE THE INVOICE AS
PRESENTED BY RUGGLES SIGN IN THE AMOUNT OF $18,000 FOR THE SIGNAGE AT THE
VERSAILLES MARKET AND ENTERTAINMENT DISTRICT.

The vote was as follows: Bingham, Bradley, Johnson, Jones, Miller and Siegelman voting aye.

City Clerk Elizabeth Reynolds presented a Memorandum of Agreement for GIS and 911 Services.
Mrs. Reynolds stated that the council approved a separate MOA in June, 2024, moving GIS services
from the Planning Commission to the Woodford Fiscal Court but it did not address the funding for
911 GIS services. She noted that this agreement was approved by the 911 Board in September, 2024, to
remit $25,000 annually from 911 to Woodford County Fiscal Court. Mrs. Reynolds stated that this is
the same annual payment that was previously paid from 911 to the Planning Commission, it is simply
changing who the payment is made to.

MOTION BY SIEGELMAN, SECONDED BY BRADLEY TO APPROVE THE MEMORANDUM
OF AGREEMENT FOR GIS AND 911 SERVICES.

The vote was as follows: Bingham, Bradley, Johnson, Jones, Miller and Siegelman voting aye.



MARCH 4, 2025

PAGE THREE

MINUTES OF REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
VERSAILLES MUNICIPAL BUILDING/5:30 P.M.

Mayor Dake stated that the agenda item relating to the Zoning Map Amendment for 251 Church
Street is listed on the agenda to acknowledge that the City has received the record from the Planning
Commission. City Attorney Moore noted that the council’s first decision is whether to accept the
record.

MOTION BY SIEGELMAN, SECONDED BY JONES TO ACCEPT THE RECORD OF THE
PLANNING COMMISSION FOR ZONING MAP AMENDMENT - LAUREN JAVERNICK &
SILVESTRE MORALES - 251 CHURCH STREET - 0.090 ACRES - R-1C (SINGLE FAMILY
RESIDENTIAL) TO R-4 (HIGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL).

The vote was as follows: Bradley, Johnson, Jones, and Siegelman voting aye. Council members
Bingham and Miller voting nay.

Mavyor Miscellaneous

Mayor Dake asked about the March 11" Work Session. Council members Bingham, Jones, and Miller
stated that they would not be in town. Mayor Dake stated that the work session would be cancelled.

She noted that the City Newsletter came out yesterday and includes information about the Glow
Eggstravaganza to be held on Friday, April 11" at The District.

Council Miscellaneous/Committee Reports

Council member Siegelman asked for updates on several ongoing projects including the downtown
hotel in the old Community Trust building, the family entertainment center planned for the old
Kroger building, the High Street Affordable Housing pilot project, and the Fire Department Station
#1 renovations.

Mayor Dake responded that the downtown hotel project is moving forward and they recently received
all of their furniture and their liquor license.

She stated that this week’s edition of “Two Minutes with the Mayor” will feature Alex riddle to
provide updates on old Kroger building project. She stated that it is expected to open in phases with
the first phase opening by the end of this summer.

She also noted that they are meeting this week to discuss the High Street project.

Fire Chief T.A. Rankin stated that the target date to move in to Station #1 was next Saturday but it is
likely it will be pushed out again. He stated that Mefford Contracting is working hard on the project
and is aware that they are more than two months past the contract date for completion. Chief Rankin
noted that there has been a delay in receiving the fire shutters, which must be installed before they can
move in, and they are working through punch list items.

Council member Miller stated that the Downtown/Tourism/Communications Committee had met
regarding the downtown flowers. She stated that they discussed the different options for the baskets
and barrel planters with Bi-Water Farms and it was determined that the best flower is still the
bubblegum pink petunia, as it is the most aggressive and longest lasting throughout the heat of
summer. She noted that they did try the addition of the sweet potato vine in 2024 but the vine seemed
to take over some of the baskets and grow through the flowers. Council member Johnson noted that
she liked the addition of the sweet potato vine.

MOTION BY MILLER, SECONDED BY BINGHAM TO USE BUBBLEGUM PINK PETUNIAS
WITHOUT VINES IN THE DOWNTOWN FLOWER BASKETS AND BARRELS.

The vote was as follows: Bingham, Bradley, Jones, Miller and Siegelman voting aye. Council member
Johnson abstained.



MARCH 4, 2025

PAGE FOUR

MINUTES OF REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
VERSAILLES MUNICIPAL BUILDING/5:30 P.M.

Department Directors

Mr. Miller thanked his public works staff for their hard work during the snow and cold weather over
the last couple of months.

Chief Rankin presented the following quotes for Versailles Fire Search and Rescue Equipment:

Inmar Marine Group $15,958.03
All Hands Fire Equipment $16,546.00
High Tech Rescue $16,640.00

He noted that they would be using the $15,000 state aid funds they receive annually from the Kentucky
Fire Commission. He also stated that these are approved expenses for those funds.

MOTION BY BRADLEY, SECONDED BY SIEGELMAN TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT THE
QUOTE AS PRESENTED BY INMAR MARINE GROUP IN THE AMOUNT OF $15,958.03 FOR
VERSAILLES FIRE SEARCH AND RESCUE EQUIPMENT.

The vote was as follows: Bingham, Bradley, Johnson, Jones, Miller and Siegelman voting aye.
Deputy Johnny Mills, Emergency Management, praised the Versailles Fire Department for their
response in the regional response group. He also stated that this week is Severe Weather Awareness
Week and encouraged everyone to sign up for Woodford Alerts.

Mayor Dake adjourned the meeting without objections.

APPROVED:

LAURA DAKE, MAYOR
ATTEST:

ELIZABETH C. REYNOLDS, CITY CLERK



